
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
July 7, 2016 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Richard Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, District Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:35 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 
p.m.) 


 
Director Robb-Wilder requested that Item III-E (CSDA Board Election) be moved from the Consent 
Calendar for discussion prior to Item IV.  There were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.) 
 
Director Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar. Director Schaap seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, except that 
Director Schaap abstained from voting on Item III-A (Minutes of the June meeting) because he was 
absent at that meeting.  The following items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the June 2, 2016 Regular Meeting. 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 


 1







D. Discussion/Action re Voting for Richard Holmer for LAFCO 
 


III-E. (6:39 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re CSDA Bay Area Network Board Election.  This 
item was removed from the Consent Calendar for discussion.  Director Robb-Wilder 
provided an overview of her position that the District should cast its vote for candidate 
Ryan Clausnitzer.  Discussion ensued.  Director Robb-Wilder moved to vote for Ryan 
Clausnitzer.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 3-0.  Director Lipinski abstained 
from voting. 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:43 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:43 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:43 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-07, Discontinuing Implementation 


of Stage 1 of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan (implemented August 7, 2014, 
and revised May 7, 2015).  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Legal Counsel 
Robin Donoghue made additional comments.  Board discussion ensued.  Director Robb-
Wilder moved to approve Resolution 16-07, Rescinding Resolution 15-10 Implementing 
Stage 1 of its Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  Director Holmer seconded.  Motion 
carried 4-0.  


 
V-B. (6:56 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re El Bonita Wellfield.  The GM provided an overview 


of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
V-C. (7:07 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Progress on USDA Loan/Bond; Approval of 


Resolution 16-08, Finding the 2017 CIP Exempt from CEQA.  The GM provided an 
overview of this item.  Legal Counsel Robin Donoghue made additional comments.  
Director Holmer moved to approve Resolution 16-08, Finding the 2017 CIP Is Exempt 
from CEQA, with the "Now, Therefore" clause amended to read, 


 
  "that the District Board of Directors hereby finds that the 2017 CIP is exempt 


from environmental review . . . and authorizes the General Manager to file a 
Notice of Exemption."  (underlined portion added.) 


 
 Director Robb Wilder seconded as amended.  Motion carried 4-0.   
 
V-D. (7:13 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Review of Fiscal Year 2015-16.  The GM provided 


an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  No action was taken. 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Russian River Flow 
4. 2017 CIP 
5. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Urban Water Management Plan 
8. Guernewood Park Fire Planning Meeting 
9. Gantt Chart 
10. Safeway put on notice to fix leak 
 


 2







 3


Brief discussion ensued. 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:07 p.m.) 


 
(None.) 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:07 p.m.) 
 
 
At 8:07 p.m. President Lipinski announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 8:08 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:33 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
actions on Closed Session items were announced: 
 
 A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
  Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(3) -- Receipt of written communication 


from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation.  One potential case. 
  No action was taken.   
 
 


VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:33 p.m.) 
 
1. SDLF Transparency Program (SW) 
2. El Bonita Wellfield 
3. USDA Grant/Loan 
4. Urban Water Management Plan 
5. 2016-17 Flat Charges 
6. LAFCO election results 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:35 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:35 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:35 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:43 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:43 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (7:45 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:07 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:07 p.m.)



		VIII. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:33 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






 
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


August 4, 2016, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
7:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 7, 2016 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Public hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 16-09, Overruling Protests and 


Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge for Sweetwater Springs Water District 
(Est. time 10 min.) 


 
B. Discussion/Action re 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted (Operations and Capital) 


Report thru June 30, 2016 (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re El Bonita Wellfield (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re 2015 Urban Water Management Plan update (Est. time 30 


min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re Progress on USDA Loan/Bond(Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
  
 A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL-ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  
  Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(3) – Receipt of written communication 


from a potential plaintiff threatening litigation. One potential case.   
 
 B. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957  
  Title: General Manager 


 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






   
    


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 


TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 4, 2016 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING RE ANNUAL FLAT CHARGE  


 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 Open Public Hearing 
 Take public comment 
 Close Public Hearing 
 Adopt Resolution 16-09, Overruling Protests and Confirming Report 


on the annual Flat Charge at the same level ($198 per connection) 
as last year 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


The FY 2015-16 assessment generated approximately $747,532 in annual 
revenues.  This does not include $27,949 received this year for capacity 
charges on new services constructed, nor does it include interest earned 
on assessment revenue in FY 2015-16. 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


On an annual basis since July 1992, the District has imposed a flat charge 
for each separate water connection to a property.  Currently set at $198 
per water connection, the funds collected are largely used to pay for debt 
service on the original purchase of the water system and facility upgrades.  
Resolution 16-09 keeps the Flat Charge at $198 per connection.    
 
This annual charge is added to the tax bill and collected by the County, 
along with all other county property taxes and assessments.   


 
 







Resolution No. 16-09 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT OVERRULING PROTESTS AND CONFIRMING 


REPORT ON ANNUAL FLAT CHARGE FOR SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 


DISTRICT. 
 


 WHEREAS, this Board did on July 14, 1992, adopt Ordinance No. 8 which 
established an annual flat charge, and authorized collection of such charge on the tax 
roll of the County of Sonoma, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared a written report containing a description of 
each parcel of real property receiving services and facilities from the District and the 
amount of the flat charge for each parcel for the 2016-17 fiscal year, and 
 
 WHEREAS,  said written report has been on file with the Clerk of said District, 
and, 
 
 WHEREAS,  notice appointing the time and place of hearing protests on said 
report was duly given in the manner provided by law; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all written protests and other written communications were publicly 
read at said meeting and all persons desiring to be heard were fully heard, 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, as follows: 
 
 1. That all objections to and protests against said report have been heard by 
this Board and that said objections and protests be, and each of them is hereby 
overruled. 
 
 2. That said report be, and it is hereby adopted in full with the revisions to 
each charge as specified therein, and that said charges shall be collected on the tax roll 
of the County of Sonoma, in the manner provided by law. 
 
 3. That the Clerk of this District be hereby directed to file with the County 
Auditor of Sonoma County, on or before the 10th day of August, 2016, a copy of said 
report, upon which shall be endorsed over her signature a statement that the report has 
been adopted by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER 
DISTRICT. 
 
 4. That the County Auditor of Sonoma County, shall upon receipt of said 
report, enter the amount of the charges against the respective lots or parcels as they 
appear on the assessment roll. 
 


***************************** 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on August 
4, 2016, by the following vote. 







 
Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Tim Lipinski 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 


 
 





		Item V-A - Public Hearing, Approve Res 16-09 re Annual Flat Charge

		Meeting Date: August 4, 2016



		Item V-A.1 RES 16-09 Annual Flat Charges






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: August 4, 2016 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU JUNE 30, 
2016 (100%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 4th quarter -- end of fiscal year --actual revenues and 
expenses as compared to budgeted.  Every year the budget is drafted to transfer 
projected surplus revenues to our Capital Improvement Revenue Fund (CIRF), 
leaving just a small amount (this year $593) as budgeted net operating income.   
 
Good news: In FY 2015-16, after all budgeted transfers, the District showed net 
operating income of $84,065.74, despite lagging water sales. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
FY 2015-16 Revenue ended the year $22,049.93 (0.9%) less than 
budgeted. 
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item and one that is very conservatively 
budgeted, nonetheless missed budgeted amounts by $37,626.75 (-1.65%).  As 
has been discussed extensively at Board meetings, our customers have 
responded impressively to a multi-year statewide push to conserve water usage 
due to the lingering drought.   
 
Non-operating revenue, particularly Rent and Miscellaneous Income, exceeded 
budgeted amounts by $15,676.82, leaving an overall net revenue deficit of 
$22,049.93.  Rent was boosted by extra payments from Crystal Communications, 
who had fallen behind in their payments in previous years.  Miscellaneous income 
was boosted by a large payment from a customer who had been sent to 
Collections.   







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru June 30, 2016 2 
August 4, 2016 


 
FY 2015-16 Expenditures ended the year $105,522.67 (6%) less than 
budgeted.  
 
Expenses break down into three categories:  Salaries & Benefits, Services 
& Supplies, and System/Equipment  
 
Salaries & Benefits were right on budget, and System/Equipment 
Upgrades were slightly ($9,367.05) under budget.  The bulk of the 
savings came from Service & Supplies, where expenses came in at 
$96,155.62 (-5.65%) less than budgeted.  There were savings in every 
category, which at least in part reflects the relationship between water 
production and costs to produce. The largest saving were in the following 
line items: 
 
 Distribution System Repairs: $22,250.85 less than budgeted 
 Vehicle Purchase: $19,634.22 less than budgeted 
 Electricity: $12,386.16 less than budgeted 
 Chemicals: $7,630.41 less than budgeted 
 Legal: $7,947.33 less than budgeted 
 Treatment System/Well Repairs: $6,680.92 less than budgeted 
 Gas: $5,887.37 less than budgeted 
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual 
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 4Q Capital Budget (Table 2) is on track with the Budget - the annual (2016) 
CIP was completed in April, all revenues are in, and 2017 CIP design expenses 
have been paid.  The District is going for a USDA bond/grant for the 2017 CIP 
and the construction contract will not be awarded until the 2017 fiscal year at the 
earliest.   
 
Interest was below budget and new services assessments, annual 
assessment, and prior year annual assessment revenue combine were close to 
the budgeted amounts.          
 
All debt payments were made in FY16 at near budgeted amounts.      
 
Total Capital Expenses without the FY17 CIP construction costs are over 
budget - the awarded contract was above the budgeted amount.  As noted 
above the FY 17 CIP construction contract will not be awarded until FY 17 and 
will be much higher than the estimated amount in the FY 16 Budget - the 
project was in design in FY 17 and the project cost was not known at the time 
of FY 16 Budget development and adoption.  
 







Actual vs, Budgeted Thru June 30, 2016 3 
August 4, 2016 


Net Capital Funding came in at $279,621 approximately $68,000 lower than 
budgeted.   
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 4th 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 4th Quarter.  
Table 3 includes all the funds listed in the County Fund Balances.  Reserves 
above Policy are approximately $183,000 less than budgeted, a reflection of the 
higher than budgeted cost of the 2016 CIP.   
 
The District's financial picture is healthy but we do not have excess funds - the 
Reserve Policy amount, funds to pay the bills at the beginning of this fiscal year 
and a little extra.   







FY 2015-16 
Actual


2015-16 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,437,538 1,434,921 2,617 100.18%
4031.11· Current Charges 509,923 587,100 -77,177 86.86%
4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,458 261,565 -107 99.96%
4031.1 · Other Water Sales Revenue 37,040 0 37,040 100.0%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 2,245,959 2,283,586 -37,627 98.35% This is a cash water sales figure.   *
Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,283,586 -37,627 98.35%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 9,142 7,500 1,642 121.89%  


3600 · Construction New Services 6,712 7,000 -288 95.89%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 100 2,000 -1,900 5.0%


4032 · Rent 99,219 90,482 8,737 109.66%
In the 1Q, Crystal Communications made extra 
payments of $12,210 on prior year arrears.  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 2,495 2,500 -5 99.79%


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 8,891 1,500 7,391 592.74%
 In the 1Q, a District customer paid off a large 
($5,406) water account that had been sent to 
Collections.  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 110,982 15,577 114.04%


Total Income 2,372,518 2,394,568 -22,050 99.08%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 783,622 734,732 48,890 106.65% FY 2015-16 had one extra payroll. *
5912 · Overtime 28,379 31,479 -3,100 90.15%  


5916 · On-Call Pay 33,428 34,083 -655 98.08%


5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,907 36,919 -12 99.97%  
Total Salary 882,336 837,213 45,123 105.39%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p -296 -296 100.0%
5920 · Retirement net employee share 85,337 124,311 -38,974 68.65% Overbudgeted. *
5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 15,548 14,438 1,110 107.69%


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 140,619 145,668 -5,049 96.53%  


5931 · Retiree Health 8,140 7,000 1,140 116.29% This line item includes CERBT deposits ($3,694.40). *
5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 31,838 36,000 -4,162 88.44%


In the 1Q, workers' compensation insurance was 
paid for the year.  


Total Benefits 281,186 327,417 -46,231 85.88%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,164,630 -1,108 99.91%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 1,778 1,800 -22 98.8%
6040-C · Cell Phones 4,417 4,300 117 102.71%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 485 600 -115 80.91%
6040-T · Telephones 14,670 19,950 -5,280 73.53% AT&T rates were renegotiated. *


Total Communications 21,350 26,650 -5,300 80.11%


Insurances


6101 · Gen. Liability 32,175 27,000 5,175 119.17% (In the 1Q, paid for the year)


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2015-16 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2016 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 4







FY 2015-16 
Actual


2015-16 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2015-16 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2016 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6102 · Auto/Equipment 0 5,200 -5,200 0.0%
Total Insurances 32,175 32,200 -25 99.92%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 14,784 16,000 -1,216 92.4%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,717 5,700 17 100.3%  


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 20,501 21,700 -1,199 94.48%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 7,397 8,140 -743 90.87%
6100 · SCADA system 6,801 5,000 1,801 136.02%  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 12,749 35,000 -22,251 36.43%
Similar to In-House Construction which is over 
budget 


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 53,319 60,000 -6,681 88.87%  


6143 · Generator Maintenance 1,814 3,500 -1,686 51.83%
Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 82,080 111,640 -29,560 73.52%


Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 10,076 9,700 376 103.87%  


6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 15,772 20,500 -4,728 76.94%
Total Miscellaneous Expenses 25,848 31,700 -5,852 81.54%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage 11,403 16,000 -4,597 71.27%  


6430 · Printing Expense 4,666 7,500 -2,834 62.21%  


6461 · Office Supplies 5,734 4,000 1,734 143.34%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 759 1,100 -341 68.99%


6890 · Computers/Software 598 3,000 -2,402 19.92%
3 workstations were budgeted, but not needed this 
year (app. $2,000). *


6579 · Furniture 487 500 -13 97.42%
Total Office Expense 23,646 32,100 -8,454 73.66%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 10,370 18,000 -7,630 57.61%  


6880 · Tools and Equipment 3,750 5,500 -1,750 68.19%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 90 1,000 -910 8.98%
Total Operating Supplies 14,210 24,500 -10,290 58.0%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 2,207 3,400 -1,193 64.91%  
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 13,392 15,000 -1,608 89.28%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 16,900 13,000 3,900 130.0%
Budget did not include $4,200 annual fee for Open 
Spatial (mapping) *


6610 · Legal 12,053 20,000 -7,947 60.26%  


6630 · Audit/Accounting 30,566 34,500 -3,934 88.6%  


Total Professional Services 75,118 85,900 -10,782 87.45%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 967 2,000 -1,033 48.38%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 28,045 28,100 -55 99.8% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 29,012 30,100 -1,088 96.39%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 702 2,650 -1,948 26.5%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 19,113 25,000 -5,887 76.45%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,606 6,400 -794 87.59%


Total Transportation & Travel 25,421 34,050 -8,629 74.66%


 Page 2 of 4







FY 2015-16 
Actual


2015-16 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2015-16 Operating Budget Variances as of June 30, 2016 (100%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 991 1,500 -509 66.06%


6021.3 · T-shirts 352 1,500 -1,148 23.45%  


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240 -240 0.0%
Total Uniforms 1,343 3,240 -1,897 41.44%


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 87,614 100,000 -12,386 87.61%  


7321 · Propane 2,415 2,000 415 120.76%  


Total Utilities 90,029 102,000 -11,971 88.26%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 535,780 -95,048 82.26%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,700,410 -96,156 94.35%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 28,940 22,000 6,940 131.55%
1Q expenditures included $6303.75 for the Park Ave. 
tank foundation (budgeted) and replacement of a 
staircase on Canyon 6 ($7145.93, unbudgeted).  


8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0  0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 3,327 0 3,327 100.0%
Expenditures include 2 unbudgeted laptops for the 
field ($2,240.78) and a generator ($1,086.41) *


8573 · Vehicles 30,366 50,000 -19,634 60.73%
This line item was overbudgeted,but the vehicle 
purchase price was offset by the sale of three older 
District trucks (total sale proceeds $5,900) *


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 72,000 -9,367 86.99%


Total Expense 1,666,887 1,772,410 -105,523 94.05%


Net Ordinary Income 705,631 622,158 83,473 113.42%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 261,565 0 100.0%  


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 320,000 320,000 0 100.0%  


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
621,565 621,565 0 100.0%


  


 Page 3 of 4







Water Sales


Base Current CDR


Oct $120,214.89 $79,799.60 $21,865.58


Nov $105,494.33 $44,382.70 $19,278.19


Dec $119,855.42 $51,917.20 $21,799.79


TOTAL $345,564.64 $176,099.50 $62,943.56


July $105,543.52 $62,759.60
August $119,815.28 $71,367.00
Sept $105,351.55 $60,696.35


$330,710.35 $194,822.95


$676,274.99 $370,922.45







1  Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2015-16 Capital Program Budget Variances as of June 30, 2016 (100%)


FY 15-16
ACTUAL 


(4Q)
FY 15-16
BUDGET


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 27,949 27,000 949 103.5%


Annual Assessment (County) 722,085 710,000 12,085 101.7%


Prior Year Assessment 25,447 40,000 -14,553 63.6%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,565 261,565 0 100.0%


Interest 8,367 25,000 -16,633 33.5%


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 343,184 320,000 23,184 107.2%


25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


808,385 630,000 178,385 128.3%


Cost of CIP above revenue transferrred to 
Capital Budget (CDRC and Transfer to CIRF 
coming). 


TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 2,221,982 2,038,565 183,417 109.0%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 64,284 64,284 0


Cap One Revenue Bond 567,492 566,508 984 NA


Total Bond Payments 631,776 630,792 984 100.2%


State Loan Payments 170,172 170,300 -128 99.9%


Private Placement Loan 234,013 234,014 -1 100.0%


Total Debt Payments 1,035,961 1,035,106 855 100.1% Sum of all debt payments


2016 CIP 1,026,584 935,000 91,584 109.8% Contract awarded in May 2015 for $1,024,837


2017 CIP 123,395 895,400 -772,005 13.8% Design Expenses, going for USDA Bond


In-House Construction Projects 36,042 25,000 11,042 144.2%


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 2,890,506 -668,524 76.9%


2,221,982 2,118,501 103,481


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 0  -851,941 851,941 0.0%


Net Capital Funding 279,621 348,077 -68,456 80.3%


=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + 
Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments (FY15 
only); need assessment payment from 
County


Funds from Reserves


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES WO  
Projected 2017 CIP Construction Exp







FY 15-16


Actual4Q


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 255,061      255,061     -               
corresponds to 
Operations (0100)


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 425,102      425,102     -               
corresponds to 
Operating Reserve 0300)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 258,777      258,777     -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
1100)


Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000     -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(1100)


Total District Policy 1,188,939 1,188,939 -             
TOTAL Reserves 2,259,513 2,442,556 (183,042)    


Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,070,574 1,253,616 (183,042)      


Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (7106-0600) ($247,764) (85,318)     -162,446
OPERATIONS (0100) $324,421 425,102     -100,681
OPERATING RESERVE (0300) $425,102 255,061     170,041
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE 
(1100) $510,829 508,777     2,053


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500) $93,525 123,106     -29,581
BUILDING (0200) $180,850 180,850     0
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200) 802,112      800,522     1,590  1st payment made 


FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400) -              64,284       -64,284  payment made this year 


STATE LOANS (0700, 0900) 170,438      170,172     266  1st payment made 


STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800,1000) 171,370      171,370     0


Restricted to last payment for 
State Loans; not included in 
Total Reserves


2,259,513   2,442,556  -183,042


POLICY RESERVES


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  FUNDS AND LOAN BALANCES (4Q) 15-16 Budget
Difference 


Actual-FY16 Comments









		Item V-B Actual v Budgeted - 4Q 2015-16

		Item V-B.1 - Budget variances as of 06-30-2016 (100%)

		Sheet1

		Water Sales breakdown



		Item V-B.2 - Capital Budget variances as of 06-30-2016 (100%)

		Table 2. FY16Q2



		Item V-B.3 - Fund and Loan Balances as of 6-30-2016 (100%)

		Table 3



		Item V-B.4 - County Accounts






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : August 4, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE EL BONITA WELL FIELD 
INUNDATION PREPARATIONS  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager  
regarding progress in resolving issues regarding flooding impacts on the El Bonita Well 
Field and the Guerneville Water Supply System.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The El Bonita Well Field is at a relatively low level near the Russian River.  It is the 
source of water for the Guerneville Water Supply System of Sweetwater Springs Water 
District.  When the River water elevation gets to 29 feet the well field starts to become 
inundated.  Flood stage for the Russian River at Guerneville is officially at 32 feet 
elevation.  The near flooding in March raised an issue that is concerning to staff - we 
learned in preparation for anticipated flooding of the El Bonita Well Field that the State 
Division of Drinking Water would expect the District to issue boil water notices if the 
wells at that location need to be operated while under water.  We had thought that we 
had addressed that issue to the State's satisfaction (the last large inundation and boil 
water notice was in 2006 and was due to flood water infiltrating the raw water line 
because of a leak in the raw water line from the wells) but we learned during this last 
event we had not.   
 
District staff had a meeting with State staff on April 28, 2016, to discuss this matter. 
The State staffs' concern is  that they are concerned that flood waters could 
contaminate the pumped water by negative pressures somewhere along the piping 
that is under the flood waters.  Our position is that District water is continually 
monitored for turbidity which should show increased turbidity and that we have a 
plan for addressing this situation, that boil water notices are a hardship for 
everyone, if not needed, and we want to find out what we can do to satisfy the 
Division of Drinking Water staff so that boil water notices are only used when 
needed.    At the end of that meeting we agreed that District staff would work on 
solutions.  We offered to get our well maintenance people involved which State staff 
stated was a good idea.   
 
Since that meeting staff have been looking at alternatives and have gotten our well 
maintenance consultants involved.  Progress: 


 Ron Foster, owner of Ground Water Well and Pump has sent a letter to the 
Division of Drinking Water stating his opinion of what we are doing provides 







El Bonita Well Field Flooding   2   
August 4, 2016 
                                                                 


 


safe water during inundations.  Mr. Foster believes, based on years of high-
level work, that our operation provides safe water during inundations.   


 
 State Division of Drinking Water Staff have acknowledged receiving the letter 


and want a District response plan for review prior to having a meeting which 
could happen in late August or September. 


 
 Staff is preparing the response plan and it should be ready for submittal to the 


State in two weeks.  The response plan has a history of flood inundation at 
the well field, the District's long-term maintenance program for the wells, the 
District's flood preparation plan, District operations at the Highland Treatment 
Plant during flooding, and recovery from flooding.  This is the current staff 
plan for operations during inundations at El Bonita.   With the included added 
written explanations of our operations, this may be acceptable to Division of 
Drinking Water staff, but it wasn't at the April meeting and more may be 
needed.   


 
 We may need a physical solution for the flooding issue and one option is to 


seal the wellhead vaults during flooding events.  Staff met with James Piazza 
regarding sealing the well vaults on a temporary basis during flooding.  Mr. 
Piazza has done similar work for the City of  Santa Rosa wastewater treatment 
facility.  He will submit a proposal for sealing the 3 vaults at El Bonita.  We 
would consider taking this approach if the Division of Drinking Water does not 
approve our current operations plan, agrees that sealing the well vaults is an 
appropriate solution, and the cost is reasonable.   


 
 
 
     
 
 





		Meeting Date : August 4, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : August 4, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISTRICT URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN (UWMP) 
POPULATION AND WATER USE PROJECTIONS AND WATER SHORTAGE 
CONTINGENCY PLAN REVISIONS 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from General Manager Steve Mack 


regarding the progress on the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan update 
progress, including a discussion on population and water use projections for the 
Plan and revisions to the Water Shortage Contingency Plan, and provide 
direction.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none   


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District is tasked with updating its UWMP for the 2015 cycle.  
This update was due July 1, 2016 but because the late provision of guidelines, the 
efforts and uncertainty related to drought water use restrictions, California Urban Water 
Conservation Coalition reporting requirements and the fact of doing this report inhouse, 
we are aiming at a public hearing date at the October 1 meeting with submittal to the 
State shortly after that.   
 
One of the aims of the UWMP is to demonstrate that a water supplier has adequate 
water supplies 20 years into the future.  As such our planning horizon is 2035.  The 
State encourages an additional 5 years of forecasting but because of the uncertainties 
of population estimates, the additional 5 years is not included in this update.   
 
Population and Water Use Forecasts: 
 
Important in doing water supply planning is accurate information on current water use 
and population.  Because Sweetwater Springs Water District meters all aspects of our 
water supply system, we have excellent information on water use, both production and 
sales.  Population is another matter.  The Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) 
service area is not a recognized Census area, nor are there any between Census 
updates as exists for many cities and all counties (I believe).  Compounding this 
problem is conflicting information from past UWMP’s.   
 
The SSWD service area is close in extent to Census tracts 1537.04 (Guerneville and 
surrounding areas) and 1537.03 (Monte Rio and surrounding areas).  Census tract 







2015 UWMP Population and Water Use Projections 2 
August 4, 2016 


1537.04 also includes the Armstrong Woods neighborhoods which are served by Cal 
Water (which has a population of approximately 400-500).  Table 3.1 shows some of 
the relevant population information.  Some observations: 


  
 The raw data for the two Census tracts showed a substantial decrease in 


population  between 2000 and 2010 (967). 
 SSWD residential connections increased by a total of 53 since 2010.   
 The 2010 UWMP had population increases based on the 2009 General Plan for 


Unincorporated areas which was 0.69%.  Since then there is a new General Plan 
Update which is called General Plan 2020.  That has an annual population 
increase for the Russian River area (which includes the District's service area, 
Armstrong Woods Road, Cazadero and Forestville) of 1.26%.   


 1.26% seems like a high increase for our service area - where are these people 
going to go?  But this is the forecast used by Sonoma County for our area and it 
seems appropriate to use for the period between 2010 and 2020. 


 Table 3-1 uses the General Plan 2020 increase for 2010-2020.  After 2020, the 
population increases at 0.69% per year (the General Plan 2009 estimate).     


 
Table 3‐1 Retail: Population ‐ Current and Projected 


2010  2015  2020  2025  2030  2035  2040(opt) 
Population Served 
(2015 Estimate)               


7,493  
8,042  8,630  8,932  9,244  9,568    


2010 UWMP 
Estimates 


             
7,493  


7,755  8,026  8,307  8,598  8,899    


Difference in 
Projections 


             
‐    


         
287  


         
604  


         
625  


         
646  


          
669  


  


NOTES: 2015 Estimate based on 2010 Census and Sonoma County General Plan 2020 population 
projections for the Russian River area from 2010 to 2010 and General Plan 2009 estimates for 2025‐
2035. 


 
Having estimates of annual population allows calculation of current gpcd which in turn 
allows proceeding with developing projections for future water supply use and needs.   
Using the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) and CUWCC methodology, 
the District’s baseline gpcd is 113.  That figure is calculated by dividing the water 
produced in each year from 1999 to 2008 by the estimated population and then 
averaging the 10 years’ gpcd’s (various specific water losses, such as flushing, are 
included in the calculation).  Using the gpcd approach, the CUWCC/DWR 2020 water 
use target is 80% of the baseline.  That amount is 90.2 gpcd.  In comparison, the 
District’s 2010 gpcd was 98.6.    
 
In calculating future gpcd’s water system loss targets have been employed.  The 2010 
system loss was 28%.  The 2010 UWMP included the goal of getting to a system loss 
rate of 15%.  Using that as a goal for 2025, interim loss target goals were developed for 
2015 (24%) and 2020 (20%) for the purpose of using the resulting gpcd’s (multiplied 
by population projections) to estimate the water supply needed in those years.   
 


 







2015 UWMP Population and Water Use Projections 3 
August 4, 2016 


We may want to include further progress in water loss prevention - we could strive for 
getting District water loss prevention down to 10% by 2035.  For calculation purposes 
Table 3-2. GPCD Targets and District Water Production shows actual and projected gpcd 
using the methods discussed here (actual water use, estimated population projections, 
and system water loss reduction goals).     
 
Table 3-2 GPCD Targets and District Water Production   


 


% System 
Loss/Targe


t 


GPCD 
based on 
System 


Loss 
Reduction GPCD Sold GPCD Lost 


DWR 
Target 


Total 
Water 


Production
Baseline 
GPCD   113     113   


2010 actual 28 98.6 69.9 28.7 109 
          


828  


2015 actual  20.7 73.0 57.5 15.5   658 


2015 Target 24 93.6 69.9 23.6 102 
          


813  


2020 Target 20 89.6 69.9 19.7 90.2 
          


806  


2025 Target 15 84.7 69.9 14.8   
          


788  


2030 Target 12.5 82.2 69.9 12.3   
          


792  


2035 Target 10 79.8 69.9 9.9   
          


795  
    


2030 Target 
(15%) 15 84.7 69.9 14.8  


          
816  


2035 Target 
(15%) 15 84.7 69.9 14.8  


          
844  


 
With established gpcd projections, future water supply needs can be projected by 
multiplying gpcd by population.  Table 3-2 includes actual and projected water 
production based on this gpcd approach.  Observations: 
 


 DWR requires the UWMP to include some methodology to demonstrate that a 
water agency will reduce its water use by 20% compared to the baseline - the 
80% of baseline gpcd approach and 3 other more complicated approaches.  The 
District's approach in 2010 UWMP was the 80% of baseline.  That is easy to do 
and show, and we are meeting those targets.  I see no reason to change.  


 
 Actual gpcd in 2015 is much better than the 2015 target and the 2020 target.  


The District's target are based solely on reducing system losses - other 
reductions (showerhead, low flush toilet, behavior modifications are not taken 
into account.  The August 2010 Agenda report on this topic stated that we would 
probably get to the 2020 target by 2015 and we've exceeded that by quite a bit.   


 







2015 UWMP Population and Water Use Projections 4 
August 4, 2016 


 


 
 The drought restrictions have 'interfered' with or confounded the 2015 actual 


results.  We have no way of knowing what will happen when District customers' 
water use rebounds.  I expect the rebound to take some time, especially if other 
parts of the State remain in drought conditions.   


   
 Water loss reduction has played an important part of the District's overall 


reduction in gpcd from 2010.  Overall water production reduced 20% and 7% of 
that can be attributed to water loss reduction.  District water users reduced their 
water use (by sales) by 13% since 2010, water losses reduced 40% in the past 
five years.    


 
 Regardless of the rebound effect and whether our beyond 2025 targets are based 


on 12.5-10% or 15%, our water production estimates are well within the 
District's water license (1137 AF) and meet the State's requirement for a 20% 
reduction from the baseline water use as determined by the 1999-2008 baseline.   


 
Water Shortage Contingency Plan: 
 
Our current drought situation gives us a good opportunity to review the Water Shortage 
Contingency Plan included in the 2010 UWMP.  One possibility that was not included in 
the 2010 UWMP was the State declaring a statewide drought and requiring mandatory 
compliance of some sort by all water agencies.  Attachment A is a red-lined version of 
the 2010 Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  It also includes tables required for the 
2015 Update.  Please review this for possible additions and improvements.   







Appendix A.  Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
A.1.  Water Shortage Emergency Response  
During declared shortages, or when a shortage declaration appears 
imminent, the General Manager, or his designated representative(s), shall be 
responsible for notification of the appropriate personnel and agency 
representatives.  The personnel and agencies to be contacted include: The 
District Board of Directors, District Staff, the Russian River & Monte Rio Fire 
Protection Districts, the California Division of Drinking Water, the Sonoma 
County Office of Emergency Services and such other agencies and/or persons 
as deemed appropriate.  The District may also notify all customers through 
its automated calling service, as appropriate.  The District’s general response 
to any emergency is also described in the District’s Emergency Preparedness 
Response and Recovery Plan.   
 
The District Plan includes responses to regional and statewide drought 
emergencies.  In most of these cases where the requested reduction is 20% 
or less, the District would specify a list of water use restrictions but not 
declare Stage I of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan.  The possible water 
use restrictions include: 
 


1. The application of potable water to any driveway or sidewalk is 
prohibited.  


2. Using a hose that dispenses potable water to wash a motor vehicle, 
unless the hose is fitted with a shut-off nozzle is prohibited.  


3. Using potable water in a fountain or decorative water feature, unless 
the water is recirculated, is prohibited. 


4. Irrigating turf or ornamental landscapes during and 48 hours following 
measurable precipitation is prohibited. 


5. Restaurants and other food service establishments can only serve water 
to customers on request; and 


6. Operators of hotels and motels must provide guests with the option of 
choosing not to have towels and linens laundered daily and prominently 
display notice of this option.  
 


During situations that require 20% or less water use, District will rely 
extensively on public information to let people know of the need to reduce 
water use.   
 
 
 
A.1.1.  Emergency Response Check List. 


 
The following Table A-1 summarizes the actions the District will evaluate 
during a water supply emergency.  
 







Table A-1.  Possible Disaster Response Activities 


Examples of Potential Actions to Discuss 
Check if 


Discussed 
Determine what constitutes a proclamation of a water shortage.  
Stretch existing water storage.  
Obtain additional water supplies.  
Develop alternative water supplies.  
Determine where the funding will come from.  
Contact and coordinate with other agencies.  
Create an Emergency Response Team/Coordinator.  
Create a catastrophe preparedness plan.  
Put employees/contractors on-call.  
Develop methods to communicate with the public.  
Develop methods to prepare for water quality interruptions.  


 
 
A.2.  Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals 
The District has a three-stage Emergency Response Plan (Table A8-21) to 
invoke during declared water shortages.  The Emergency Response Plan 
includes voluntary and mandatory reductions, depending on the causes, 
severity, and anticipated duration of the water supply shortage.  
 
Table 8‐1 Retail 
Stages of Water Shortage Contingency Plan 


Complete Both 


Stage   Percent Supply 
Reduction1 


Numerical value 
as a percent 


Water Supply Condition  
(Narrative description) 


Add additional rows as needed 


         .I 


20‐30% 
 Regional or Statewide drought declaration, or local reduction in 
water supply requiring 20‐30% reduction, short term reduction in 
water use  


II  31‐50%   Reduction in water supply requiring 31‐50% reduction in water use 


III  >50%   Greater than 50% reduction in water supply 
1 One stage in the Water Shortage Contingency Plan must address a water shortage of 50%. 


NOTES: 







Table A-2 
Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals 


Shortage Condition Stage 
Customer 
Reduction 


Goal 
 


15 – 25% I 25%  
26 – 35% II 35%  
36 – 50% III 50% or >  


 


A.2.1  Priority by Use 
Priorities for use of available potable water during shortages are based on 
the legal requirements set forth in the California Water Code, Sections 350-
358.  Water allocations are established for all customers according to the 
following ranking system: 
 
 Minimum health and safety allocations for interior residential needs  


(includes single family, multi-family, hospitals and convalescent facilities, 
retirement and mobile home communities, and fire fighting and public 
safety) 


 Commercial, industrial, institutional/governmental operations  (where 
water is used for manufacturing and for minimum health and safety 
allocations for employees and visitors), to maintain jobs and economic 
base of the community (not for landscape uses) 


 Permanent agriculture (orchards, vineyards, and other commercial 
agriculture which would require at least five years to return to 
production).  


 Existing landscaping  
 New customers, proposed projects without permits when shortage 


declared. 
 
A.2.2  Health and Safety Requirements 
Based on commonly accepted estimates of interior residential water use in 
the United States, Table A-3 indicates per capita health and safety water 
requirements. In Stage I shortages, customers may adjust either interior or 
outdoor water use (or both), in order to meet the voluntary water reduction 
goal. 
 
Under the Stage II mandatory rationing program, the District has established 
a health and safety allotment of FORTY-FIVE GALLONS PER CAPITA PER DAY 
(45 gpcd), which is equivalent to 1.8 units (180 cubic feet) per person per 
month.  This amount of water is sufficient for essential interior water use.  
Stage III mandatory rationing would require that most customers make 
changes in their interior water use habits (for instance, not flushing toilets 
unless “necessary” or taking less frequent showers).  
 
We should consider whether a mandatory rationing program is 
necessary.  Other communities get to 50% conservation without 
rationing.   







 
 


Table A-3 
Per Capita Health and Safety Water Quantity Calculations 


 
Non-Conserving 


Fixtures 
Habit Changes 1 Conserving Fixtures 2 


Toilets 3 flushes x 5.5 gpf 16.5 3 flushes x 5.5 gpf 16.5 5 flushes x 1.6 gpf 8.0 


Shower 4 min x 4.0 gpm 16.0 4 min x 3.0 gpm 12.0 5 min x 2.0 10.0 


Washer 12.5 gpcd 12.5 11.5 gpcd 11.5 11.5 gpcd  11.5 


Kitchen  3 gpcd 3.0 2 gpcd 2.0 4 gpcd 4.0 


other 3 gpcd 3.0 2 gpcd 2.0 4 gpcd 4.0 


Total (gpcd)  51.0  44.0  37.5 


1  Reduced shower use results from shorter and reduced flow.  Reduced washer use results from fuller 
loads. 


2  Fixtures include ULF 1.6 gpf toilets, 2.0 gpm showerheads and efficient clothes washers. 
 
 


A.2.3  Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms 
Specific criteria for triggering the District's rationing stages are shown in 
Table A-4.  Examples of possible reduction methods are shown in Table A-5.   
 


Table A-4 
Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms 


Percent 
Reduction of 


Supply 


Stage I 15 20 - 2530% 
(Voluntary) 


Stage II 2530 - 3550% 
(Mandatory) 


Stage III 35 - 50% > >50% 
(Mandatory) 


Water Supply Condition 


Current Supply 


Total supply is 7570 – 8580% 
of “normal.” or conservation is 


needed to stretch existing 
supplies, or participation in a 
regional or statewide drought 


emergency 
OR 


Total supply is 6569 – 7550% 
of “normal.” or conservation 
is needed to stretch existing 


supplies 
OR  


Total supply is less than 
6549% of  “normal.” or 


conservation is needed to 
stretch existing supplies 


OR 


Future Supply 


Projected supply insufficient to 
provide 7580% of “normal” 
deliveries for the next two 


years. 
OR 


Projected supply insufficient 
to provide 6570% of “normal” 


deliveries for the next two 
years. 


OR 


Projected supply insufficient to 
provide 5060% of “normal” 
deliveries for the next two 


years. 
OR 


Water Quality 


Contamination of 20% of 
water supply (exceeds primary 
drinking water standards) for 3 


days 
OR 


Contamination of 30% of 
water supply (exceeds 
primary drinking water 


standards) for up to one 
week 
OR 


Contamination of 40% or more 
of the water supply (exceeds 


primary drinking water 
standards) for over one week 


OR 


Disaster Loss Disaster loss Disaster loss Disaster Loss 


 
 







 
 


Table 8‐2 Retail Only: Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Uses  


Stage   


Restrictions and Prohibitions on End Users 
Drop down list 


These are the only categories that will be accepted by 
the WUEdata online submittal tool  


Additional 
Explanation or 
Reference 
(optional) 


Penalty, 
Charge, or 
Other 


Enforcement? 
Drop Down List 


Add additional rows as needed 


0  
Landscape ‐ Restrict or prohibit runoff from 
landscape irrigation 


This is required at all 
times. 


Yes 


0  
Other ‐ Customers must repair leaks, breaks, and 
malfunctions in a timely manner 


This is required at all 
times. 


Yes 


I 
CII ‐ Restaurants may only serve water upon 
request 


   No 


I 
CII ‐ Lodging establishment must offer opt out of 
linen service 


   No 


I  Other ‐ Require automatic shut of hoses     Yes 


I 
Other ‐ Prohibit use of potable water for washing 
hard surfaces 


   Yes 


I 
Landscape ‐ Limit landscape irrigation to specific 
days 


   Yes 


II  Landscape ‐ Prohibit all landscape irrigation     Yes 


II 
Other ‐ Prohibit vehicle washing except at facilities 
using recycled or recirculating water 


   Yes 


           


NOTES: 


Table A-5 
Consumption Reduction Methods 


Examples of Consumption Reduction Methods Stage When Method Takes Effect 


Demand reduction program All stages 
Flow restriction  ?? III 
Restrict new connections III 
Use prohibitions I, II, III 
Water shortage pricing II, III 
Per capita allotment by customer type III 
Voluntary rationing I 
Mandatory rationing II, III 
Education Program All Stages 
Other  


 







A.3.  Water Shortage Ordinance 


The District has adopted a Wastage of Water Ordinance (3090.90) listed 
below.   
 
 3090.90 Wastage of Water:  No consumer shall cause or permit 
any water furnished to their property by the District to run to waste in any 
gutter or otherwise.  Notwithstanding section 3080.30-3080.60, the District 
may, after one warning, terminate the service of any consumer for failure to 
comply with the foregoing rule.  Restoration of service may be conditioned 
upon installation of a flow restrictor on the consumer’s service.  Fees will be 
charged for the flow restrictor and installation or removal in addition to the 
turn-on charge provided for in section 3020.112. 
 
The District would consider implementing a moratorium on new connections 
during declared water shortages, and revisions to the wastage of water 
ordinance or adoption of other water shortage-related ordinances as 
appropriate to the type of emergency.  A draft emergency water shortage 
ordinance is in Appendix D. 
 


A.3.1.  Excessive Use Penalties  
Any customer violating the regulations and restrictions on water use shall 
receive a written warning for the first such violation.  Upon a second 
violation, the customer shall receive a written warning and the district may 
cause a flow-restrictor to be installed in the service.  If a flow-restrictor is 
placed, the violator shall pay the cost of the installation and removal. .  If the 
written warning is not complied with water service ismay be disconnected,; it 
shall be restored only upon payment of the turn-on charge fixed by the Board 
of Directors. 
 
Comment: District practice is to shut water off if customers do  not comply 
with warnings.  We do not use flow restrictors. 
 
 


A.4.  Mechanism to Determine Reductions in Water Use 
Under normal water supply conditions, potable water production figures are 
recorded daily.  All customers are metered and are billed on a bimonthly 
basis.  Production totals are reported monthly to the Field Supervisor and the 
General Manager, and are incorporated into the District’s water production 
report and the General Manager’s Report presented at each monthly Board 
meeting.  Bimonthly sales information is also incorporated into the General 
Manager’s monthly report.   
 
During a Stage II or Stage III water shortage, or during a water emergency, 
daily production figures will be reported to the Field Manager, as appropriate.  
The Field Manager will compare the weekly production to the target weekly 
production to verify that the reduction goal is being met.  Weekly reports will 







be forwarded to the General Manager, the Board of Directors and the State 
Department of Public Health Division of Drinking Water or other appropriate 
regulatory agencies.  If reduction goals are not met, the General Manager 
will notify the Board of Directors so that corrective action can be taken.  
 
A.5.  Revenue and Expenditure Impacts and Measures to 
Overcome Impacts 


The District maintains a reserve equal to 15% of its annual operating budget 
expenses (approximately $1.5 7 million Operating Budget expenses) for the 
purposes of dealing with emergencies and disaster-related expenses.  This 
reserve amount is $277255,000 for FY 1217.  The District has additional 
budget reserves for economic uncertainty, debt repayment and capital 
expenses.  The total District Reserve Policy amount is approximately $1 
million.    
 
The analysis shown in Table A-6 Cost Impacts Associated with Water 
Shortages assumes that water revenues are consistent with metered use in 
the 2005/2006 fiscal years upon which the District’s Rate Model is based.  It 
also assumes that total district operating expenses would increase by 
approximately 10%, or $150,000 during these major water shortage events.  
Table A-6 shows the estimated cost impacts of the major shortage events: 







 
 
Table A-6  Cost Impacts Associated with Water Shortages 
 Stage II Stage III 


% Reduction in Annual Sales 3540% 50% 


Reduction in Water Sales Revenue $290239,00
0


$297400,000 


Increased Operating Costs $150,000
 


$150,000 


Total Net Reduction in Revenue $450389,00
0


$550447,000 


 
 
As shown in Table A-6, the District would have sufficient reserves to sustain 
a major water shortage emergency for over one year, but the financial 
impacts of these unlikely events would be substantial.  During this period the 
Board of Directors would have ample time to assess the need for rate 
increases consistent with the type of water shortage.   It may be that a rate 
restructuring would be needed to encourage reduced water use while 
developing sufficient revenues for sustained operations.   On note, the 
District is currenty (2016) experiencing the impacts of a Stage I Declaration 
and it is having impacts on funding the Capital Improvement Program.   
 
 







 





		Item V-D -2015 UWMP Population and Water Use Projections

		Meeting Date : August 4, 2016 



		Item V-D.1 - Attachment A. Water Shortage Contingency Plan Revised

		Appendix A.  Water Shortage Contingency Plan

		A.1.  Water Shortage Emergency Response 

		A.2.  Emergency Response Stages and Reduction Goals

		A.2.1  Priority by Use

		A.2.2  Health and Safety Requirements

		A.2.3  Water Shortage Stages and Triggering Mechanisms

		A.3.  Water Shortage Ordinance

		A.3.1.  Excessive Use Penalties 

		A.4.  Mechanism to Determine Reductions in Water Use



		A.5.  Revenue and Expenditure Impacts and Measures to Overcome Impacts










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : August 4, 2016  
 
SUBJECT:  DISCUSSION/ACTION REGARDING PROGRESS WITH A POSSIBLE 
LOAN/BOND WITH USDA  
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation by the General Manager on 
the progress with the bond/grant from the U.S. Department of Agriculture Rural 
Development (USDA) to fund the 2017 CIP and provide direction to staff.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The District is seeking funding through USDA for the FY17 CIP which is replacement of 
approximately 6,800 ft of existing main and 75 services on Old River Rd at Morningside 
east to the eastern section of Foothill Drive and include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive 
and River Rd on river side of the road.  
 
Coastland Engineering has completed the Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) and 
Environmental Report which are required elements of the USDA loan/bond process and 
that has allowed the District to submit its application.  This was done July 25 for what I 
hope is the last time - there were several revisions needed to make the application and 
the PER show the exactly same information and for that information to be correct and to 
have an appropriate explanation of the District's financial position (we had too much 
money at the end of the 2016 Fiscal Year).  USDA staff are reviewing the application 
and the District should soon learn (end of August?) if the loan/bond has been approved 
and how much of the loan/bond is a grant.       
 





		Meeting Date : August 4, 2016 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: August 4, 2016  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in June were 19,044 units (43.7 AF, 
Guerneville cycle) and production was 65.2 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and 
production were higher (37.6 AF and 61.2 AF, respectively).  The water lost percentage has 
decreased a bit (20.7) and is still staying at historically low levels.   The reduction from 
January 2013, the State Board standard, was 24%,  GPCD for May was 75.5.  Figure 1 
shows sales, production and % difference since 2008.   


 
2. Leaks:  In June we had 9 total leaks and spent 27.6 man-hours on them.   Those are fewer 


leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and to June one year ago (18 leaks, 103 
man-hours).  Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line as 
well. The District is at historic lows for this; let's hope it continues.         


   
3.  Russian River Flow: Russian River flow (Figure 3) is looking decent for this time of year - 


similar to last year but a bit higher.   
 


4. 2017 CIP:   This will be discussed in the Administrative Agenda.            
   


5. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:  One toilet rebate reported for July. 
 
6. In-House Construction Projects: One in-house projects completed in July: replaced a 


service and put customer valve in box (56 man-hours)  
 
7. Hidden Valley Road Property:  On July 26 I hiked with Ken Frankel and his executive 


assistant on District property off of Hidden Valley Road (location of the former Hidden Valley 
Tank, APNs 072-021-014 and 019) on the District property there and Mr. Frankel's property 
(APNs 072-021-13 and 21), approximately 200 acres which surround much of the District 
parcels.  Mr. Frankel is interested in limited development of his property and also public use 
of the area.  He may want to enter into discussions with the District on easements for access 
to his property.  The District also owns property off of Old Cazedero Road (APN 072-021-
008) which could help provide access to Mr. Frankel's property.   


 
8. Gantt Chart:   The only item in the Gantt Chart is preparation of the Urban Water 


Management Plan which is on the agenda for this meeting.  
 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
August 4, 2016 
 


 


Figure 1.  Monte Rio and Guerneville Sales and Production 12 Month 
Moving Averages, SSWD Since March 2010 


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


0%


5%


10%


15%


20%


25%


30%


35%


P
er


ce
n


t 
L


o
st


Monte Rio Sales


Guerneville Sales


Gville Prdtn


MR Prdtn


GV % Lost


MR % Lost


`







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
August 4, 2016 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12 Mar-13 Sep-13 Mar-14 Sep-14 Mar-15 Sep-15 Mar-16


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Figure 3.  Russian River Summer Flow at Hacienda Bridge, 2016 Compared to 
Earlier Years, and the 2009-15 Average, Updated July 26, 2016


0


100


200


300


400


500


600


700


800


1-
Apr


8-
Apr


15
-A


pr


22
-A


pr


29
-A


pr


6-
M


ay


13
-M


ay


20
-M


ay


27
-M


ay


3-
Ju


n


10
-J


un


17
-J


un


24
-J


un
1-


Ju
l


8-
Ju


l


15
-J


ul


22
-J


ul


29
-J


ul


5-
Aug


12
-A


ug


19
-A


ug


26
-A


ug


2-
Sep


9-
Sep


16
-S


ep


23
-S


ep


30
-S


ep


F
lo


w
 (


cf
s)


2013


2014


2015


2016


09-15 Avg


Source: USGS 
http://waterdata.usgs.gov/nwis/uv?11467000







 
Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: August 4, 2016 



